
City of Capitola Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Michael Termini  

Vice Mayor: Jacques Bertrand  

Council Members: Ed Bottorff  

 Stephanie Harlan  

 Kristen Petersen  

 
Treasurer: 

 
Peter Wilk 

 

   

 

REVISED 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

THURSDAY, APRIL 12, 2018 
 

7:00 PM 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 

CLOSED SESSION -  5:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; (5) Mid-
Management Group; and (6) Department Heads 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –  ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Gov’t. Code §54956.9(d)(2). 

(One potential case) 
 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
April 12, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 4/16/2018 11:51 AM 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Ed Bottorff, Stephanie Harlan, and 
Mayor Michael Termini 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Introduce New Public Works Project Manager Kailash Mozumder  

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet. 

   A.   Item 10.B – Three public comment emails 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Consider Traffic and Parking Commission Application  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the appointment of Melanie Arao for the 
remaining Village Resident term. 

  



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
April 12, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 4/16/2018 11:51 AM 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived. 

A. Consider the March 22, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Consider a Resolution Allocating the 2019 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account Funds  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution. 

 10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Consider a Resolution Making Changes to the Yellow, Green, and Red Curb 
Markings along Capitola Avenue from Bay Avenue to Plum Street  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Resolution designating a yellow loading 
zone in front of 704 Capitola Avenue and modify curb markings on Capitola Avenue 
between Bay Avenue and Plum Street. 

B. Framework for Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinances  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Provide direction. 

C. Consider Building Official Options  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct staff to:  
1. Prepare a contract for a shared Building Official with the City of Scotts Valley; 

and 
2. Meet with appropriate Employee Groups to discuss changes to job descriptions 

and salary schedules. 

 11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
April 12, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 4/16/2018 11:51 AM 

 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 

 



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduce New Public Works Project Manager Kailash Mozumder  
 

 
 
DISCUSSION: The Department of Public Works is pleased introduce Kailash Mozumder as the 
City’s new Public Works Project Manager.  Kailash has worked on public and private projects as 
a consultant for the past 16 years and is excited to bring that experience here to benefit our 
community.  Kailash last worked for ICF management consulting where his experiences 
included coordinating multiple firms and contractors on complex water, transportation, and 
public utility projects.  Kailash and his family of Bay Area natives have lived in Capitola since 
2014 and he has been an active member of the City’s Commission on the Environment since 
2015. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



4.A

Packet Pg. 6

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 12

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 14

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 15

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 16

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 17

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 18

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 19

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 20

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 21

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 22

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 23

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 24

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 25

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 26

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 27

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 28

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 29

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 30

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 31

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 32

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 33

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 34

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 35

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 36

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 37

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 38

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 39

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



4.A

Packet Pg. 40

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 1

0.
B

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Traffic and Parking Commission Application  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the appointment of Melanie Arao for the remaining Village 
Resident term. 
 
BACKGROUND: In late Fall 2017, founding Traffic and Parking Commission member Margaret 

Kinstler announced her resignation and the City Clerk began recruitment to fill the unfinished 

term as one of two Village Resident appointments. When no applications were received by the 

original deadline, the recruitment was extended as open until filled. The opening was included in 

press releases to local media and on the City website, and the notice was distributed by the 

Capitola Village Residents Association. 

 

DISCUSSION: On March 14, the city received an application from Melanie Arao, a resident of 

Depot Hill (Attachment 1). The Village Resident category has been interpreted in the past as 

someone living within the Central Village Zoning District, although the founding resolution does 

not define the boundaries. Additionally, the remaining Village Resident representative lives just 

outside the Central Village and nevertheless was appointed by the City Council in 2013. 

Therefore, staff is bringing to the City Council the question of whether it wishes to consider Ms. 

Arao a Village Resident for purposes of appointment to the commission. Her home is quite near 

the neighborhood entrance and Monterey Avenue. No other applications have been received. 

If the Council decides Ms. Arao is an eligible applicant, it may also appoint her to the unfinished 

term at this time. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Arao Traffic and Parking Application 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 41



Traffic and Parking Commission Application  
April 12, 2018 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 42



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ra
o

 T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the March 22, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular 

meeting of March 22, 2018. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 3-22-18  draft minutes 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 44



 

 

DRAFT 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES 
THURSDAY, MARCH 22, 2018  

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Mayor Bertrand called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. with the following items to be 
discussed in Closed Session: 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
[Govt. Code §54956.9(d)(1)] 
City of Capitola v. D’Angelo 
Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No. CV 181659 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Gov’t Code § 54956.9(d)(4). 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 
Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; (5) Mid-
Management Group; and (6) Department Heads 
 
LIABILITY CLAIMS [Govt. Code §54956.95] 
Claimant:  Norm Gaedtke 
Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 

There was no public comment; therefore, the City Council recessed to Closed Session in the 
City Manager’s Office. Mayor Termini joined the Council during Closed Session. 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member Ed Bottorff: Present, Mayor 
Michael Termini: Present, Vice Mayor Jacques Bertrand: Present, Council Member Kristen 
Petersen: Present. 
Treasurer Peter Wilk was present. 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Red Cross Month Proclamation [120-40] 

 
Mayor Termini presented a proclamation to Michele Averill, COE of the Central Coast 
Red Cross. She said the local chapter will install more free smoke alarms this May. 
Mayor Termini noted that the small local chapter is one of the top providers of 
volunteers, who respond around the country and world. 

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney Condotti reported that for the four items on the agenda, the Council received a 
report and gave direction. The liability claim is also item 8.D. 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-2
2-

18
  d

ra
ft

 m
in

u
te

s 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 22, 2018 

 
 

 

 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

  A. Item 8.G – One public comment 

  B. Item 9.A – Three items: one staff memo and two communications 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA - None 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Manager Jamie Goldstein reported the City just received the latest sales tax payment, 
covering the holiday season, which showed a 2.8 percent decline year-to-year. This 
information will be factored into the budget preparations. 
 

Treasurer Wilk noted the city is paying $135 an hour for contracting the building official. 
He said the costs are much higher than salaried employees and suggested saving 
money by raising salaries. 
 
Council Member Petersen thanked the latest commissions to include youth membership. 
She also noted the Community Action Board has an emergency eviction program 
available. 
 
Council Member Bertrand attended the recent Central Fire District standards of 
coverage presentation. Chief Steve Hall said he was pleased with the results and the full 
report is available online.  
 
Mayor Termini thanked Public Works for its efforts clearing drains and roads with recent 
rains. 
 
Police Chief Terry McManus updated Council on recent ICE (Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement) action in the jurisdiction. The City was notified in the early hours of March 
7 that action would take place. No assistance was requested or provided. The action 
followed existing policy, which encourages the cooperation of the immigrant community. 
 
Mayor Termini announced Operation Surf’s program for wounded veterans will hold its 
opening ceremonies in Capitola tomorrow morning. 

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION: APPROVE OR DENY AS RECOMMNEDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

A. Consider the March 8, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-2
2-

18
  d

ra
ft

 m
in

u
te

s 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 22, 2018 

 
 

 

 

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes. 

C. Approval of City Check Registers Dated February 2, February 7, February 16 and 
February 23, 2018 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 

D. Liability Claim of Norm Gaedtke [Claims Binder] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 

E. Consider Amended Library Naming Policy [230-10] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve amended Library Donor Recognition Policy. 

F. Consider a Resolution Updating Commission on the Environment Membership [230-10] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution. 

G. Consider a Resolution Updating Traffic and Parking Commission Membership [230-10] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution. 

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Appeal of a Director Decision Not To Relinquish a Public Right-of-Way 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Uphold staff’s determination to deny a Private 
Improvement Permit and a Revocable Encroachment Permit for 211 Monterey 
Avenue.  

 
Community Development Director Richard Grunow presented the staff report. 
 
Attorney David Beck spoke on behalf of the appellant. He provided an overview of 
property history and privacy concerns as outlined in the revised appeal letter. He noted 
that staff initially indicated a fence could be placed at the property line and was later 
issued a fence permit in 2015. Regarding the free flow of pedestrian traffic, he pointed to 
two "bottlenecks" at the edge of the two adjoining buildings. 
 
Property owner Maor Katz said he made a number of decisions based on his belief that 
he had a valid fence permit. 
 
In public comment, Peter Wilk noted there are bottlenecks and suggested approving a 
compromise. 
 
Council clarified what diagram was presented at the time the fence permit was issued. 
 
Council Member Harlan said that while she is sympathetic, she does not wish to grant 
the full encroachment request. Council Member Petersen agreed and expressed 
concern about setting a precedent that errors cannot be corrected. Council Member 
Bottorff noted the City has made many efforts to improve sidewalks and he does not 
wish to undo those efforts. There was consensus support for a compromise. 

 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-2
2-

18
  d

ra
ft

 m
in

u
te

s 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 22, 2018 

 
 

 
 
 

MOTION:  DENY THE APPEAL AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

 
The Council also wished to provide staff with direction for achieving a compromise that 
would address the appellant’s concerns. Council Member Bottorff proposed allowing a 
fence a distance of 33 inches from the home at regulation height. Council also supported 
refunding the fence permit and appeal fees, and encouraged working with the appellant 
to address any hazards created by the handicapped ramp and to relocate any 
personalized bricks. 
 
Staff discouraged any increase in fence height out of concern for setting a precedent 
and the potential design issues that an application for a front yard fence exceeding 42 
inches could experience at the Planning Commission. 

 

MOTION:  RECOMMEND THAT STAFF WORK WITH THE APPELLANT ON A 
PERMIT APPLICATION FOR A COMPROMISE PROJECT ALLOWING A 
FENCE NO MORE THAN 33 INCHES FROM FRONT OF THE HOME AT 
THE ALLOWED 42- INCH HEIGHT AND A REFUND OF FENCE AND 
APPEAL FEES. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

B. General Plan Clean-up Discussion 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize staff to initiate the proposed General Plan 
Amendments 
 

Director Grunow presented the staff report, identifying areas in which there is conflict 
between the updated General Plan and the newly adopted Zoning Code, such as map 
zoning changes and nomenclature. He highlighted the change to portions of the north 
side of Capitola Avenue from commercial to multi-use, which was not included in the 
written staff report.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
In response to the Planning Commission request for additional comment time, Council 
Member Bottorff recommend a 60-day public comment period. The Council supported 
moving forward with the amendments as recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-2
2-

18
  d

ra
ft

 m
in

u
te

s 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 22, 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE STAFF TO INITIATE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENTS WITH A 60-DAY PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

C. Report on Soquel Creek Management Plan 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept report. 

 
Don Alley, who has worked with the City as a fish biologist since 1990 monitoring the 
Soquel Creek lagoon, presented the report. The management plan was last updated in 
2004. Efforts have focused on plans to restore steelhead and coho. His overview 
addressed both the upper watershed and lagoon. He noted he works closely with Public 
Works staff. Some steelhead spawn and yearlings live in the lagoon, and the current 
flume improvement project is vital to managing the lagoon.  
 
Seven of the last 11 years have been dry, which adversely impacts steelhead, and he 
shared steelhead counts. He said the City’s habitat is excellent and declines are due to 
dry weather. Another recent project is trying to restore cattails. He would also like to find 
ways to have larger wood remain in the habitat.  Expensive options are to replace the 
bridge or install wing walls to prevent buildup. Another option is to secure wood in place. 
Preserving shade trees and limiting erosion in the upper watershed will also improve 
conditions. He also expressed concern about cigarette butts making their way from the 
decks into the habitat.  
 
Mr. Wilk from the Commission on the Environment noted that volunteer ivy pulling to 
support tree health was done as much as allowed without permits. A professional crew 
has been funded, likely working in August or September. 

 

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting adjourned at 8:41 p.m.  
 

     _______________________ 
      Michael Termini, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 

____________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-2
2-

18
  d

ra
ft

 m
in

u
te

s 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Allocating the 2019 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 

Account Funds  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution. 
 
BACKGROUND: Senate Bill 1, known at the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 
(RMRA), was signed into law in April 2017 to address the state’s basic road maintenance and 
critical safety needs. In fiscal year 2018/2019 Capitola will receive approximately $168,750 from 
RMRA.  
 
SB1 requires the City to adopt a resolution prior to May 1 each year indicating how the City’s 
RMRA allocation will be used for the following fiscal year.  
 
DISCUSSION: The highest priority road project in the Capital Improvement Program is the 
pavement rehabilitation of 42nd Avenue from Jade Street to Capitola Avenue, Diamond Avenue 
from 42nd Avenue to 45th Avenue and Ruby Court. This project was initiated in 2016 but delayed 
due to funding shortages. The estimated project cost for this project is $770,000 and staff is 
recommending the following funding plan: 
 
 RMRA 2018/19  $168,700 
 RMRA 2019/20  $168,700 
 Measure D 2019/20  $300,000 
 City Funds 2019/20  $130,000 
 
The two-year allocation of RMRA funds will facilitate the completion of the design and 
construction documents in 2018/19 and then allow for construction in fall of 2019 when the other 
funding is available. 
 
The spreadsheet in Attachment 1, which was originally adopted by the City Council in July 27, 
2017, shows the five-year plan for RMRA and Measure D allocations and now includes updates 
based on the above allocation of RMRA funds and a STIP (State Transportation Improvement 
Program) grant award to the Brommer Street project that is scheduled for 2018/19. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: This allocation of the RMRA funds will be shown in the budget and Capital 
Improvement Program documents, which will be presented to the Council in May. 
 

9.B

Packet Pg. 50



SB 1 Project List 2018/19  
April 12, 2018 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Capitola Measure D 5 year list 2018 (PDF) 
 

Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 51



SB 1 Project List 2018/19  
April 12, 2018 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  
 ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 FUNDED BY  

SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 
(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and signed into law by the 
Governor in April 2017 in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding 
shortfalls statewide; and  

 
WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure 

the residents of the City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in the community and 
which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City must adopt a list of all projects proposed to receive funding from 

the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1 by resolution, 
which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $168,750 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 

2018-19 from SB 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, this is the second year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding that will 

enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility 
options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has prioritized funding for roadway improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate 26 miles of 

roadway throughout the City this year and into the future; and 
 
WHEREAS, a 2017 Pavement Management Program update was completed by the City 

which found that the City’s streets and roads are in fair condition, and this revenue will help  
increase the overall quality of the road system and over the next decade will bring the streets 
and roads into a good condition; and  

  
WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in local streets and roads 

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 
infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 
positive co-benefits statewide. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the City of 
Capitola adopts the following project list for the 2018/19 fiscal year: 
 

The pavement rehabilitation project on 42nd Avenue from Jade Street to Capitola Road, 
Diamond Avenue from 42nd Avenue to 45th Avenue, and Ruby Court.  The design and 

9.B

Packet Pg. 52



SB 1 Project List 2018/19  
April 12, 2018 
 

construction documents will be constructed in fiscal year 2018/19 and the project 
constructed in fall of 2019.  The estimated life of the new pavement is 25 years. 

  
 The above and foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Capitola at a regular meeting held on the 12th day of April, 2018, by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
       

____________________________
 Michael Termini, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
 Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

9.B

Packet Pg. 53



City of Capitola Capital Improvement Program

Amended Measure D and RMRA Expenditure Plan: 5-Year Plan (FY18/19-FY22/23)) 

Name/Road/ limits

Description, complete streets 

components

Total cost 

estimate

Measure D 

Funds

Road 

Maintenance 

Rehab 

Account

Other 

funds Schedule

Major 

project* Benefits Status

Recommended Projects
year Yes/no Road/Bike/Ped

Highway 1 Interchange Bike Lane 

Imrovements 

enhance bike lanes at 41st Avenue, Bay 

Avenue and Park Avenue interchanges - 

Green Bike Lanes  $        200,000               65,000                  58,000           77,000 2017/18 no Bike complete

Citywide Slurry Seal  $        355,000             220,000                           -           135,000 2017/18 no Road bid 6/18

42nd Avenue, Diamond Ave, Ruby Court 

Pavement rehab* repave road, reconstruct curb ramps  $        770,000             300,000                336,000         134,000 

2018/19

2019/20 no Road/Ped

delayed

2019/20

Brommer Street Imrpvoements

Road, bike and sidewalk improvements 

between 41st Ave and 38th Ave  $        770,000             300,000         470,000 

2019/20

2018/19 no Road/Bike/Ped

Moved up

to 2018/19

Fanmar Avenue Improvements Pavement and drainage improvements  $        550,000             250,000                150,000         150,000 2020/21 no Road no change

McGregor Drive road way Improvements

Sidewalk, bike lane and pavement 

improvements - east of Park Avenue  $    1,000,000             300,000                150,000         550,000 2021/22 no Road/Bike/Ped no change

         1,435,000                694,000      1,516,000 

* two year allocation of RMRA funds 

(2018/19 and 2019/20)

Other Eligible Projects

Capitola Avenue Improvements

Sidewalk, bike lane and pavement 

improvements from Bay Avenue to Village  $    1,250,000 TBD yes Road/Bike/Ped no change

Capitola Avenue Roundabout

Roundabout at Capitola Avenue & Bay 

Avenue  $    1,100,000 TBD yes Road/Bike/Ped no change

Hill Street Sidewalks Sidewalk from Rosedale to Bay Ave 400,000$        TBD no Ped no change

*For Major Projects (e.g. require CEQA, over $1M, and/OR lots of public interest), provide separate one-page summary with longer desciption, describe consistency with the 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 M
ea

su
re

 D
 5

 y
ea

r 
lis

t 
20

18
  (

S
B

 1
 P

ro
je

ct
 L

is
t 

20
18

/1
9)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Making Changes to the Yellow, Green, and Red Curb 

Markings along Capitola Avenue from Bay Avenue to Plum Street  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Resolution designating a yellow loading zone in front 
of 704 Capitola Avenue and modify curb markings on Capitola Avenue between Bay Avenue 
and Plum Street. 
 
BACKGROUND: In an effort to help resolve some of the congestion issues at the Bay/Capitola 

Avenue intersection, and in response to a large volume of calls for service, over the past 18 

months the Police Department has performed nearly 200 “extra checks” for illegal parking near 

the intersection of those two streets. During that same period, officers issued 27 citations for 

illegal parking.  

Analysis reveals the majority of the complaints are for delivery trucks double-parking or parking 

in red zones to make deliveries to the bakery located at 504 Bay Avenue (Gayle’s Bakery and 

Rosticceria). To better understand the scope of the issue, public works and police interviewed 

the complainants, bakery management, and delivery truck drivers. Patrons of the local 

businesses and employees occupy most of the on-street parking on Capitola Avenue and Bay 

Avenue.  

Commercial delivery vendors require an area to temporarily park and make distributions of 

perishable and non-perishable goods. Under current conditions, commercial vehicles double-

park on Capitola Avenue to make deliveries to the adjacent businesses. Large vehicles 

consume the entire northbound lane of Capitola Avenue and present a significant traffic hazard. 

Officers continue to respond to complaints concerning this intersection and have issued 

appropriate parking citations.    

In addition to the police work, staff has received complaints from neighbors related to impacts 

from commercial spillover parking into adjacent residential neighborhoods. In response, staff 

has held multiple meetings with neighbors and management of Gayle’s Bakery to discuss the 

issues and potential remedies. The proposed modifications to curb markings were identified as 

a reasonable and cost-effective measure the City could take to alleviate the problem. 

DISCUSSION: Staff has developed a series of proposed changes to the street parking along 

Capitola Avenue that would provide a loading zone for deliveries and maximize available on-

street parking. City staff is recommending the following changes: 

1. Designate a loading zone in front of 704 Capitola Avenue. Pursuant to the municipal 

code, the loading zone would only allow stopping/parking for deliveries from 8 a.m. to 1 

10.A

Packet Pg. 55



Capitola Avenue Parking and Loading  
April 12, 2018 
 

p.m., after 1 p.m. the parking spaces would become 2-hour public parking. These 

spaces are currently open public parking with no time limits. The building at 704 Capitola 

Avenue. serves as the operations center for the bakery, receiving many of the deliveries. 

By creating a loading zone at this location, bakery staff has indicated they will direct 

delivery vehicles to utilize this loading zone, thereby hopefully eliminating a great deal of 

the double and red zone parking. 

2. Repeal the designation of two 24-minute parking spaces in front of 708 Capitola Avenue. 

These 24-minute spaces (green zones) were created as short-term parking for the liquor 

store that closed several years ago. This space is now occupied by a yoga studio and 

the need for short-term parking is no longer present. The business center at 706/708 

Capitola Avenue has approximately 50 on-site parking spaces.  

3. Repeal the designation of one 24-minute parking space in front of 715 Capitola Avenue. 

This space provides short-term parking for the businesses at this address; however 

there are 21 on-site spaces that staff believes adequately serve the property. 

4. Direct Public Works to make small adjustments to existing red zone areas to maximize 

parking along the street. This will include reducing a 32-foot red curb in front of 706 

Capitola Avenue by five feet, shortening a 22-foot red curb in front of 712 Capitola 

Avenue by five feet, and shortening the red curb at 715 Capitola Ave by five feet. 

In addition to adding the loading zone, freeing up otherwise short-term parking spaces in the 

area will help mitigate some of the impacts of spillover parking into the neighborhood. Staff was 

unable to identify similar changes to the parking along Bay Avenue.  

A resolution approving these changes has been prepared for the Council’s consideration. Notice 

of this hearing has been mailed to all properties within 500 feet of Gayle’s Bakery. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Costs associated with repainting street curbs can be funded through the 

existing Public Works street maintenance budget. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution Changes to Capitola Ave. Curb Markings 
2. Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue On-Street Parking Map 

 
Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 56



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
DESIGNATING A YELLOW LOADING ZONE 

IN FRONT OF 704 CAPITOLA AVENUE AND REMOVING EXISTING GREEN ZONES 
ALONG CAPITOLA AVENUE BETWEEN BAY AVENUE AND PLUM STREET  

  
 
 WHEREAS, City staff has received complaints concerning various on-street parking 
issues in the area of the intersection of Bay Avenue and Capitola Avenue; and 

 WHEREAS, the parking complaints are predominantly a result of commercial delivery 
truck double parking or parking in red zones to make deliveries to nearby businesses along with 
overflow parking of customers and employees of the businesses using all available on-street 
parking; and 

 WHEREAS, efforts to control and resolve the issues through enforcement actions have 
proven ineffective due to the lack of options for the delivery trucks; and 

 WHEREAS, options to modify the on-street parking along Capitola Avenue have been 
identified that would create a new loading zone as prescribed in the Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 10.36.170; and 

 WHEREAS, an evaluation of 24-minute parking spaces along Capitola Avenue showed 
they may be eliminated to make them available for longer term parking. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Capitola to 
approve the following changes to the parking along Capitola Avenue: 

1. Designate parking spaces on Capitola Avenue fronting 704 Capitola Avenue as a yellow 
zone (loading zone), in accordance with CMC 10.36.170 

2. Repeal the designation of two green zones (24-minute parking) in front of 708 Capitola 
Avenue 

3. Repeal the designation of one green zone in front of 715 Capitola Avenue 
4. Direct Public Works to make adjustments to the existing red zones in the area to 

maximize the availability of public parking in the area without compromising safety 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 12th day of April, 
2018, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   
         _____________________ 
         Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 
 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 C
h

an
g

es
 t

o
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

. C
u

rb
 M

ar
ki

n
g

s 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

ad
in

g
)



Proposed Loading Zone

24-minute Zone at 708 Captola Ave

24-minute Zone at 715 Capitola Ave

Ca
pit

ola
 Av

en
e

Bay Avenue

Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue
 On-Street Parking Map

10.A.2

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

n
u

e 
an

d
 B

ay
 A

ve
n

u
e 

O
n

-S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 M

ap
  (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

ad
in

g
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Framework for Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinances  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Provide direction. 
 
BACKGROUND: The City Council adopted Urgency Ordinance No. 989 on January 9, 2014, to 

prohibit commercial cultivation and processing of medical marijuana within the City of Capitola. 

In 2016, California voters approved Proposition 64 which decriminalized the possession, use, 

and sale of recreational marijuana for adults 21 or older and authorized the recreational sale of 

marijuana beginning on January 1, 2018. 

On March 9, 2017, the City Council held a public hearing to consider the 2014 ordinance in light 

of Proposition 64. Citing concerns with the lack of state regulations and guidance on commercial 

marijuana activities, the Council ultimately adopted an amended ordinance to ban all 

commercial marijuana uses, except for laboratory testing facilities. The City Council also 

directed staff to schedule a review of the ordinance once state regulations were adopted for 

commercial marijuana activities. 

The City Council reviewed the ordinance on February 8, 2018, and expressed support to retain 
current prohibitions on manufacturing, cultivation, and recreational delivery services. The 
Council also directed staff to return with additional information and recommendations to allow 
limited retail sales exclusively in the Regional Commercial zoning district. 
 
DISCUSSION: In addition to providing information requested at the February 8 meeting, staff 
seeks direction on several policy matters outlined below to facilitate the preparation of an 
ordinance. 
 
Public Safety Considerations 
The City Council requested additional information including crime statistics related to retail 
marijuana sales, facility security measures, requirements to display the green cross sign, and 
projected staffing demands to review license applications and properly monitor retail marijuana 
outlets. 
 
The State of California Bureau of Cannabis Control began issuing licenses for cannabis-related 
businesses on January 1, 2018. Criminal activity and analysis associated with state licensees 
has not been examined during the first three months of the program. Currently, three 
jurisdictions within the Santa Cruz County have adopted ordinances to allow retail/commercial 
cannabis activity: Santa Cruz County, the city of Santa Cruz, and the city of Watsonville. An 

10.B

Packet Pg. 59



Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance  
April 12, 2018 
 
informal query of crimes associated and criminal concern revealed no significant concern 
related to their permitted business, nor were there any “quality of life” type concerns expressed.  
 
Physical security measures are critical towards managing crime potential and nuisance activity 
associated with licensed retail businesses. The following list are some of the best practices 
recognized by public safety associations and the League of California Cities.  
 

• Alarm systems (perimeter, fire, panic) at all sites 

• Exterior and interior cameras systems (360 degree). Evidence provided to law 
enforcement upon request 

• Camera and security systems shall allow for remote monitoring and recording, supported 
by uninterruptable 24-hour power supply  

• Certified security personnel on-site during business hours 

• Perimeter lighting systems for after-hours security 

• Hardened point of sale security utilizing bullet resistant glass and remote monitoring 

• All employees must pass Live Scan background check 

• Premises subject to law enforcement inspection to ensure compliance 

• Products shall not be attractive to children or easily confused with candy or foods that do 
not contain cannabis 

• Packages must be resealable, tamper-evident, child resistant, and properly labeled 
 

The green cross commonly seen outside marijuana businesses is not required by statute and 

could be prohibited if desired. 

Tax and Fiscal Considerations 

Retail sales of marijuana have potential to generate revenue for the City. Most cities and 

counties in California charge a 5 percent to 10 percent local tax on retail marijuana sales. Any 

local tax would be in addition to the mandated 6 percent state sales tax and 15 percent state 

marijuana tax. Staff estimates a single retail marijuana establishment could generate 

approximately $200,000 to $300,000 in annual revenue to the City, depending on the City’s tax 

rate and an establishment’s sales volume. 

If the City Council decides to proceed with allowing retail marijuana sales, staff recommends 

that a “not-to-exceed” 10 percent tax measure be placed on the November 2018 ballot. Most 

jurisdictions who have established a local cannabis tax have sought voter approval for a not-to-

exceed tax, asking voters to approve a maximum amount that the City Council could adjust in 

the future based on market conditions. This tax would allow the City to capture some revenue 

from marijuana sales that could be used, in part, to offset any increased demands for City 

services.  

Currently both Santa Cruz County and the City of Santa Cruz have a voter-approved not-to-

exceed 10 percent cannabis tax on retail sales. The County currently has its tax set at 7 percent 

while Santa Cruz City increased its to 8 percent on January 1, 2018. Additionally, a ballot 

measure would allow for a high degree of citizen engagement on the issue; Capitola voters 

would decide if they want to allow retail marijuana sales in the City.  

Law enforcement officials throughout the state have expressed concerns related to the overall 

cannabis tax rate’s potential impact on illegal cannabis sales. To date no consensus has been 

reached regarding the threshold at which a tax would drive black market sales, therefore staff 

recommends flexibility in a local tax rate to allow the City to adjust as best practices are 

10.B

Packet Pg. 60



Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance  
April 12, 2018 
 
developed. 

Zoning Considerations 

To allow retail marijuana sales in the City, staff will need to draft an amendment to the recently 

adopted Zoning Code to establish retail marijuana sales as a conditionally allowed use type and 

to include appropriate conditions and performance standards to minimize land use conflicts. 

Based on previous Council direction and a review of best practices applied by other California 

agencies, staff recommends the following zoning parameters for retail marijuana sales 

establishments: 

• Limit uses to the Regional Commercial zoning district, which is an approximately 2,800-

foot long area along 41st Avenue between Capitola Road and Highway 1. 

• Establish a 1,000-foot minimum path of travel (buffer) distance between schools and 

churches, and a minimum 500-foot buffer distance between retailers. 

• Require retailers to be in a location with independent access. A permit would not be 

issued for a location that shares an entryway with another business.  

• Require retailers to obtain a revocable Conditional Use Permit and maintain a current 

Cannabis Retailing permit, as outlined below. 

Cannabis Retailing Permit 

Staff also recommends the establishment of a new municipal code section that requires a 

Cannabis Retailing Permit. Such permits would require renewal on a periodic basis, and 

incorporate best-practice physical security and retailing measures. In addition, the ordinance 

would: 

• Allow a maximum of one, two or three Cannabis Retailing Permits. 

• Establish a competitive, merit-based permit issuance system that accounts for legal 

cannabis retail experience, civil and criminal records, operations and security plans, and 

residency. The Council may also include criteria to promote minority- or woman-owned 

businesses, employee wages/benefits, or other factors. 

• Permits would not be transferable to other business operators and would not run with the 

property. 

• Require operators to undergo periodic review by the Police and Community 

Development Departments. If the retailer has serious or multiple violations, the Police 

Chief and/or Community Development Director may suspend or revoke the Cannabis 

Retailing Permit. 

• Prohibit specific products that are attractive to children or youth and products with 

packaging or labeling that is attractive to children or youth. 

• Incorporate and require compliance with conditional use permit requirements. 

Process 

If directed by City Council, staff will draft new and amended ordinances for future Planning 

Commission and City Council consideration. Staff will also simultaneously initiate preparation of 

a ballot initiative, which could include a community survey process to help gauge voter attitudes 

toward a local cannabis tax. Staff would work with the City Attorney to craft the ordinances so 

10.B

Packet Pg. 61



Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance  
April 12, 2018 
 
they would only go into effect if a ballot measure passed in November 2018. Staff anticipates 

that ordinance development will take several months, but would need to be completed by early 

August to meet election deadlines. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Based on state-wide and local data provided by the Santa Cruz County, staff 

estimates an average retail cannabis operation would have $3 million to $4 million in annual 

sales. If Council decides to proceed with allowing cannabis sales within the City, the City will 

collect 1 percent of regular sales tax, one-half percent district sales tax (Measure O and 

Measure F), and the cannabis tax approved by the voters. These revenues will help offset costs 

associated with any increased demand for city services.  

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Rich Grunow 
 Community Development Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 62



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF APRIL 12, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Building Official Options  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct staff to:  

1. Prepare a contract for a shared Building Official with the City of Scotts Valley; and 
2. Meet with appropriate Employee Groups to discuss changes to job descriptions and 

salary schedules. 
 
BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola has had a budgeted building official on staff since its 

incorporation in 1949. The building official is responsible for ensuring compliance with the 

California Building Code, the State Housing Code and the International Existing Building Code. 

In addition, the building official serves as the City of Capitola's Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) compliance officer. 

Last August, the City’s building official resigned to take a position with the City of Belvedere in 

the North Bay.  The City has been unsuccessful in recruiting a building official since that time.  

Other jurisdictions throughout Northern California are also reporting challenges recruiting and 

retaining qualified building officials due to market competition and the robust private 

construction industry. 

As an interim solution, the City entered a contract with the private consulting firm 4Leaf to 

provide temporary, part-time building official services. On an annual basis, that contract cost is 

approximately $135,000. 

DISCUSSION: To better understand the building official job market staff has surveyed other 

area cities and posted vacancies throughout Northern California.  Based on the City’s salary 

schedule, the City’s building official salary is approximately 15 percent below current market 

conditions. 

In an effort to explore innovative solutions to fill the City’s Building Division needs, the City 

reviewed the current responsibilities within the division and opened discussions with other local 

cities to explore the possibility of a shared-service model. 

Staff has concluded the current workload in the division could be managed with a part-time 

building official, a full-time building inspector, and a part-time development services technician.  

This would not impact the overall Community Development Department staffing level, would 

improve the match between workload and job descriptions, and potentially reduce overall costs. 

The City of Scotts Valley has not had an internal building official position for an extended period. 

Its building official position has been covered in recent years through a contract with a private 

10.C

Packet Pg. 63



Building Official Options  
April 12, 2018 
 
consulting firm.   

Scotts Valley management has indicated an interest in exploring a shared-service model with 

the City of Capitola. While the overall terms of such a relationship would require a contract, the 

basic terms of the relationship, as proposed by staff, would include: 

 Shared building official model, employed by Capitola but also serves as building official 
in Scotts Valley pursuant to a contract between the two cities 

 Building official would work approximately 50 percent for each jurisdiction 

 Term – three years 

 Termination - either party must provide three months’ notice of termination during the 
first year of the contract; thereafter either party may terminate the agreement on July 1 
any given year with notice prior to December 31. 

 Contract is terminated if building official is no longer employed by the City of Capitola 

 Capitola would provide a building official vehicle; those costs would be incorporated into 
the contract 

 Scotts Valley would reimburse Capitola for 50 percent of the direct employee cost 

(salary, actual benefits, current PERS normal cost), plus 40 percent overhead 

(Medicare, human resources, payroll, workman’s compensation insurance, Public 

Employee Retirement System unfunded liability, etc.), plus a portion of vehicle cost; or 

$105,000, whichever is less 

 Each party would be solely responsible for any claims arising out of employee’s work for 

each jurisdiction 

 Scotts Valley would participate in hiring process 

 Annual employee evaluation would be completed in coordination with both jurisdictions 

 

The Scotts Valley City Council is scheduled to review this same proposal on April 18. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Under the proposed model, staff projects a roughly $30,000 to $40,000 

annual cost savings over the prior Building Division staffing model with a full time building official 

and full time building inspector. Actual savings would depend on the final contract terms and the 

actual salary step of the building official and proposed development services technician.   

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.C

Packet Pg. 64


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	1. LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	2. ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Introduce New Public Works Project Manager
	Printout: Introduce New Public Works Project Manager


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Additional Materials 10.B
	Attachment: Additional Materials 10.B


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. Traffic and Parking Commission Application
	Printout: Traffic and Parking Commission Application
	1. Arao Traffic and Parking Application


	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. 3-22-18  draft minutes

	B. SB 1 Project List 2018/19
	Printout: SB 1 Project List 2018/19
	1. Capitola Measure D 5 year list 2018


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Capitola Avenue Parking and Loading
	Printout: Capitola Avenue Parking and Loading
	1. Resolution Changes to Capitola Ave. Curb Markings
	2. Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue On-Street Parking Map

	B. Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance
	Printout: Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance

	C. Building Official Options
	Printout: Building Official Options


	11. ADJOURNMENT
	12. Communications

	Appendix
	2.A · Introduce New Public Works Project Manager
	4.A · Additional Materials 10.B
	8.A · Traffic and Parking Commission Application
	8.A.1 · Arao Traffic and Parking Application

	9.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	9.A.1 · 3-22-18  draft minutes

	9.B · SB 1 Project List 2018/19
	9.B.1 · Capitola Measure D 5 year list 2018

	10.A · Capitola Avenue Parking and Loading
	10.A.1 · Resolution Changes to Capitola Ave. Curb Markings
	10.A.2 · Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue On-Street Parking Map

	10.B · Framework for a Retail Marijuana Sales Ordinance
	10.C · Building Official Options


